
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION 
 Community Development District 

 
 May 16, 2023 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Pine Ridge Plantation  
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website:  www.pineridgeplantationcdd.com 

 
May 9, 2023 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Pine Ridge Plantation Community 
Development District will be held Tuesday, May 16, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Pine Ridge 
Plantation Amenity Center, 4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida 32068.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 
 
  
  
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Public Comments (Regarding Agenda Items Listed Below) 
  
 III. Series 2020 Project: 
  A. Update Regarding Series 2020 Project 
 
  B. Ratification of Pay Requisitions (55-58) 
 
 IV. Open Items 
  A. Sign at Entryway 
 
  B. Slide Tower 
 
 V. Consideration of Proposal from Brightview for Sod and Seeding  
 
 VI. Consideration of Proposal from Riverside Management Services for Fiscal Year 

2024 Services 
 
 VII. Consideration of Resolution 2023-03, Approving the Proposed Budget for 

Fiscal Year 2024 and Setting a Public Hearing Date for Adoption 
 
 VIII. Consideration of Resolution 2023-04, Setting a Hearing on Revised Amenity 

Suspension and Termination Rules 
 



 IX. Consideration of Resolution 2023-05, Resolution Regarding Records Retention 
Policies 

  
 X. Staff Reports 

A. Attorney  
 
  B. District Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters (1,511) 
    
  C. Engineer  
     
  D. Amenity & Operations Manager  
   1. Report 
 
   2. Landscape Quality Inspection Report 
 
  XI. Public Comments / Supervisor’s Requests 
 
 XII. Approval of Consent Agenda 
  A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 15, 2023 Continued Meeting and 

the March 21, 2023 Meeting  
 
  B. Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures for the Period 

Ending April 30, 2023  
 

C. Assessment Receipts Schedule 
 
  D. Approval of Check Register 
 
 XIII. Next Scheduled Meeting – 07/18/23 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Pine Ridge Plantation 

Amenity Center 
 
 XIV. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



























































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Proposal for Extra Work at

Pine Ridge CDD

March 10, 2023

Page 1 of 2

Middleburg, FL  32068

St Augustine, FL  32092

475 W Town Place Ste 114

4200 Pine Ridge Plantation Pine Ridge Plantation CDD

Maria  Cranford

Billing Address

To

ContactPine Ridge CDD

Project Description

Project Name

Property Address

Property Name

Pine Ridge: Sod for New Construction (Area Behind Splash Park and Slide)

Landscape Enhancements

Scope of Work

TotalMaterial/DescriptionUoM/SizeQTY

$6,234.80Area Behind Splash Park and Slide:

Light Grade areas. Deep Edge any Necessary
hardscapes. Dispatch of Crew. Remove any debris if
needed

LUMP SUM1.00

St Augustine Sod - InstalledSQUARE FEET4,000.00

Service Line

346100576JOB#

SO# 8061297

130

For internal use only

$6,234.80Total Price

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

 11530 Davis Creek Court, Jacksonville, FL 32256 ph. (904) 292-0716 fax (904) 292-1014

This proposal is valid for thirty (30) days unless otherwise approved by Contractor's Senior Vice President



March 10, 2023

Page 2 of 2



Proposal for Extra Work at

Pine Ridge CDD

March 10, 2023

Page 1 of 2

Middleburg, FL  32068

St Augustine, FL  32092

475 W Town Place Ste 114

4200 Pine Ridge Plantation Pine Ridge Plantation CDD

Maria  Cranford

Billing Address

To

ContactPine Ridge CDD

Project Description

Project Name

Property Address

Property Name

Pine Ridge: Hydroseeding Open Field

Landscape Enhancements

Scope of Work

Please note:

4 Applications are quoted to ensure proper growth of seeds. 

TotalMaterial/DescriptionUoM/SizeQTY

$4,882.50Hydroseeding Open Field 1st Application:

Hydroseeding Open Field. (Labor and material Included)LUMP SUM1.00

$4,882.50Hydroseeding Open Field 2nd Application:

Hydroseeding Open Field. (Labor and material Included)LUMP SUM1.00

$4,882.50Hydroseeding Open Field 3rd Application:

Hydroseeding Open Field. (Labor and material Included)LUMP SUM1.00

$4,882.50Hydroseeding Open Field 4th Application:

Hydroseeding Open Field. (Labor and material Included)LUMP SUM1.00

Service Line

346100576JOB#

SO# 8061360

130

For internal use only

$19,530.00Total Price

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

 11530 Davis Creek Court, Jacksonville, FL 32256 ph. (904) 292-0716 fax (904) 292-1014

This proposal is valid for thirty (30) days unless otherwise approved by Contractor's Senior Vice President



March 10, 2023

Page 2 of 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 
9655 Florida Mining Boulevard West  – Building 300 – Suite 305 – Jacksonville, Florida  -  32257 

	
May	2,	2023	
	
Marilee	Giles	
Pine	Ridge	Plantation	Community	Development	District	
475	West	Town	Place,	Suite	114	
World	Golf	Village	
St.	Augustine,	Florida	32092	
	
Re:				Amenity	Management,	Facility	Assistant,	Field	Management,	Lifeguards,										
										Gate	Monitors,	Pool	Maintenance	and	Janitorial	Services	
	
Dear	Marilee:	
	
Please	consider	this	proposal	for	Riverside	Management	Services,	Inc.	to	continue	providing	the	
following	services	for	the	Pine	Ridge	Plantation	Community	Development	District:	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 FY	2023	 								FY	2023	 	 FY	2024	
Services	 	 	 	 	 	Budget	 						Actual	Fee									Proposed	Fee	
	
Amenity	Manager	 	 	 														$61,859	 								$61,859	 	 $67,426	
Facility	Assistant	(735.43	hrs)	 	 $19,489	 								$19,489	 	 $19,489	
Field	Management																																														$24,179	 								$24,179	 	 $25,630	
Pool	Maintenance	 	 	 	 $13,500	 								$13,500																	$14,310	
Janitorial	Service																																																	$8,777																							$8,777	 	 	$9,304	
Lifeguard	Service	(954	hrs)																			 $19,080	 								$19,080	 	 $19,080	 	
Gate	Monitor	 (307.30	hrs)	 	 	 	$6,146	 										$6,146																			$6,146	
	
The	proposed	fees	will	remain	static	for	Facility	Assistant,	lifeguards	and	Gate	Monitors,	but	we	are	
asking	for	a	cost	of	living	increase	for	the	Amenity	Manager,	Operations	Manager,	Pool	Maintenance	
and	Janitorial	Services.		The	amounts	for	Lifeguards	reflects	a	$1.50	per	hour	rate	increase	to	offset	
the	impact	of	the	mandated	minimum	wage	increase	of	$1.00	plus	taxes,	insurance	and	cost	of	living	
increase.	 	The	ownership	and	management	at	Riverside	Management	Services,	Inc.	would	like	to	
thank	the	Board	of	Supervisors	in	advance	for	your	consideration	of	our	request	to	help	offset	the	
continued	rise	in	cost	to	operate	in	these	unprecedented	times.			Should	you	have	any	questions	or	
comments,	please	feel	free	to	give	me	a	call.	
	
Sincerely,	
	
	
	
Jerry	Lambert	
Vice	President	



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RESOLUTION 2023-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PINE RIDGE 
PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED 
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
THEREON PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW; ADDRESSING TRANSMITTAL, POSTING 
AND PUBLICATION REQUIREMENTS; ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors (“Board”) of the Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District (“District”) 
prior to June 15, 2023, a proposed budget (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning 
October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024 (“Fiscal Year 2023/2024”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Proposed Budget and desires to set the required 
public hearing thereon.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:  

 
1. PROPOSED BUDGET APPROVED.  The Proposed Budget prepared by the District 

Manager for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved as the basis 
for conducting a public hearing to adopt said Proposed Budget.  

 
2. SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing on said approved Proposed Budget 

is hereby declared and set for the following date, hour and location:  
 
  DATE:    July 18, 2023 
 
  HOUR:    _________ 
 
  LOCATION:   ____________________________ 

____________________________ 
____________________________ 

 
3. TRANSMITTAL OF PROPOSED BUDGET TO LOCAL GENERAL PURPOSE 

GOVERNMENT.  The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of the Proposed Budget 
to Clay County at least 60 days prior to the hearing set above.  

 
4. POSTING OF PROPOSED BUDGET.  In accordance with Section 189.016, Florida 

Statutes, the District’s Secretary is further directed to post the approved Proposed Budget on the 
District’s website at least two days before the budget hearing date as set forth in Section 2, and 
shall remain on the website for at least 45 days.  

 



5. PUBLICATION OF NOTICE.  Notice of this public hearing shall be published in the 
manner prescribed in Florida law.  

 
6. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of 

this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Resolution, or any part thereof. 

 
7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF MAY, 2023.  
 

ATTEST:      PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________          
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 
Exhibit A: Proposed Budget 

 



Proposed Budget
Fiscal Year 2024

Pine Ridge Plantation Community
Development District

May 16, 2023



Pine Ridge Plantation
Community Development District

Summary Revenues and Expenditures Page 1-2

Narrative – Administrative and Maintenance Page 3-10

2020 A1 and A2 Debt Service Fund Page 11-13

Capital Reserve Page 14

TABLE OF CONTENTS



Pine Ridge Plantation
Community Development District General Fund

Adopted Actual YTD Projected Projected Proposed
Description Budget FY2023 As of 4/30/2023 Next 5 Months Thru 9/30/23 Budget FY2024

Revenues

Assessments $681,433 $676,886 $4,526 $681,411 $735,075
Misc. Income/Facility Rental $3,000 $3,525 $5,025 $8,550 $3,000
Interest Earned $600 $16,493 $8,250 $24,743 $12,500

Total Revenues $685,033 $696,904 $17,801 $714,705 $750,575

Expenditures

Administrative

Supervisors Fees $9,600 $4,800 $3,000 $7,800 $8,000
FICA $734 $367 $230 $597 $612
Engineering $7,000 $0 $1,520 $1,520 $3,000
Attorney $20,000 $6,168 $6,000 $12,168 $20,000
Annual Audit $3,175 $0 $3,175 $3,175 $3,175
Assessment Roll $5,260 $5,260 $0 $5,260 $5,576
Arbitrage $1,200 $600 $0 $600 $600
Trustee $6,000 $4,041 $0 $4,041 $4,100
Dissemination $5,000 $2,917 $2,083 $5,000 $5,250
Management Fees $48,830 $28,484 $20,346 $48,830 $51,760
Information Technology $1,400 $817 $583 $1,400 $1,600
Telephone $500 $133 $217 $350 $500
Postage $1,000 $215 $750 $965 $1,000
Printing & Binding $1,200 $387 $1,725 $2,112 $1,500
Insurance $9,948 $8,911 $0 $8,911 $10,248
Legal Advertising $2,500 $303 $1,140 $1,443 $2,500
Other Current Charges $600 $182 $140 $322 $600
Website Maintenance $1,200 $700 $500 $1,200 $1,200
Office Supplies $300 $4 $146 $150 $300
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $0 $175 $175

Administrative Expenses $125,622 $64,463 $41,556 $106,018 $121,695

Amenity Center

Insurance $12,310 $14,398 $0 $14,398 $21,597
General Facility Maintenance $17,000 $6,762 $10,427 $17,190 $18,700
Repairs & Replacements $25,000 $10,625 $14,375 $25,000 $27,500
Recreational Passes $500 $0 $500 $500 $500
Postage $100 $0 $0 $0 $0
Printing & Email Marketing $125 $0 $0 $0 $0
Office Supplies $700 $205 $295 $500 $500
Other Current Charges $250 $0 $0 $0 $0
Permit Fees $250 $175 $250 $425 $425
Contingency $5,000 $0 $460 $460 $1,000
Special Events $15,000 $12,979 $2,021 $15,000 $15,000
Refuse Service $9,600 $5,759 $4,281 $10,040 $10,787
Security $12,500 $9,530 $5,240 $14,770 $18,646
Gate Monitor $6,146 $0 $3,073 $3,073 $6,146

1



Pine Ridge Plantation
Community Development District General Fund

Adopted Actual YTD Projected Projected Proposed
Description Budget FY2023 As of 4/30/2023 Next 5 Months Thru 9/30/23 Budget FY2024

Utilities
   Water & Sewer $4,500 $2,784 $2,125 $4,909 $5,400
   Electric $23,000 $11,902 $8,500 $20,402 $25,000
   Cable/Phone/Internet $4,200 $2,652 $1,935 $4,587 $5,111
Management Contracts
   Amenity Management $61,859 $36,084 $25,775 $61,859 $67,426
   Facility Assistant $19,489 $601 $18,889 $19,489 $19,489
   Field Management Services $24,179 $14,104 $10,075 $24,179 $25,630
   Lifeguards $19,080 $0 $19,080 $19,080 $19,080
   Pool Maintenance $13,500 $7,875 $5,625 $13,500 $14,310
   Pool Chemicals $16,159 $9,645 $7,529 $17,173 $21,683
   Janitorial Service $8,777 $5,120 $3,657 $8,777 $9,304
Janitorial Supplies $4,000 $1,414 $2,374 $3,788 $5,000
Holiday Decorations $0 $72 $0 $72 $0

Amenity Center Expenses $303,225 $152,688 $146,484 $299,172 $338,234

Grounds Maintenance

Landscape Maintenance $126,000 $69,974 $58,311 $128,285 $154,236
Lake Maintenance $12,930 $5,950 $4,250 $10,200 $14,830
Electric $2,500 $1,064 $675 $1,739 $2,500
Water $26,000 $7,749 $7,500 $15,249 $26,000
Repairs and Maintenance $20,000 $7,511 $10,941 $18,452 $22,000
Irrigation Repairs $3,500 $3,144 $1,000 $4,144 $4,000
Contingencies $4,451 $0 $2,226 $2,226 $4,451

Grounds Maintenance Expenses $195,381 $95,393 $84,903 $180,296 $228,017

Capital Reserve $60,805 $60,805 $0 $60,805 $62,629

Total Expenses $685,033 $373,348 $272,943 $646,291 $750,575

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENSES) $0 $323,555 ($255,142) $68,413 $0

FY2023 FY2024
Units 737 737 $ Increase

Gross Assess per Unit $984 $1,061 $77
Net Assess per Unit $925 $997

Total Gross Assessment $724,930 $781,996 % Increase
Less: Discounts & Collections (6%) ($43,496) ($46,920) 8%

Total Net Assessment ** $681,433 $735,075

2



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

General Fund Budget 

REVENUES: 

Assessments 

The District will levy a Non-Ad Valorem assessment on all the platted lots within the District to pay all of the 
operating expenses for the Fiscal Year in accordance with the adopted budget. 

Misc. Income/Facility Rental Fees 

Includes replacement key deposits and income from residents for rental of facilities for personal use. 

Interest Earned 

Maintenance Assessment income of the District will be invested in accordance with Florida Statutes and 
the investment guidelines approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

EXPENDITURES: 

Administrative: 

Supervisor Fees/FICA 

The Florida Statutes allows each board member to receive $200 per meeting not to exceed $4,800 in one 
year.  The amount for the fiscal year is based upon all five supervisors attending the estimated 8 annual 
meetings.  The FICA represents the Employer’s share of Social Security and Medicare taxes withheld from 
Board of Supervisors checks. 

Engineering 

The District's engineering firm, England, Thims & Miller, Inc., will be providing general engineering services 
to the District, including attendance and preparation for monthly board meetings, review invoices, etc. 

Attorney 

The District's legal counsel, Kutak Rock LLP, will be providing general legal services to the District, including 
attendance and preparation for monthly meetings, preparation and review of agreements, resolutions, etc. 

Annual Audit 

The District is required annually to conduct an audit of its financial records by an Independent Certified Public 
Accounting Firm, Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank. 

Assessment Roll 

The District contracts with Governmental Management Services, LLC for the certifications of the District’s 
annual maintenance and debt service assessments to the Clay County Tax Collector.   

3



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

General Fund Budget 
Arbitrage 

The District is required to have an Arbitrage Rebate Calculation on the District’s Series 2020A1 and A2 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds.  Grau and Associates is contracted to provide annual report. 

Trustee 

The District’s Series 2020 A1 and A2 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds are held by a Trustee at U.S. Bank. 
The amount represents the fee for the administration of the District’s bond issue. 

Dissemination Agent 

The District has contracted with Governmental Management Services, LLC, to act as the Dissemination Agent 
for the District to prepare the Annual Disclosure Report required by the Security and Exchange Commission 
in order to comply with Rule 15(c)(2)-12(b)(5), which relates to additional reporting requirements for un-
rated bond issues. 

Management Fees 

The District receives Management, Accounting and Administrative services as part of a Management 
Agreement with Governmental Management Services, LLC. 

Information Technology 

Represents costs related to the District’s information systems, which include but are not limited to video 
conferencing services, cloud storage services and servers, security, accounting software, etc.  Services as 
part of agreement with Governmental Management Services, LLC. 

Telephone 

This item includes the cost of a telephone and fax machine. 

Postage 

This item includes overnight deliveries, correspondence, and mailed checks to vendors. 

Printing & Binding 

Printing of checks, stationary, envelopes etc. 

Insurance 

The District's General Liability & Public Officials Liability Insurance policy is with Preferred Governmental 
Insurance Trust.  PGIT specializes in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies. 

Legal Advertising 

The District is required to advertise various notices for monthly Board meetings, public hearings etc. 

4



 
 

Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

General Fund Budget 

 

 
Other Current Charges  
 
Bank charges and any other miscellaneous expenses incurred during the year.  Also includes service fee to 
provide revised amortization schedule by Disclosure Services. 
 
Website Maintenance 
 
Represents the costs associated with monitoring and maintaining the District’s website created in accordance 
with Chapter 189, Florida Statutes. These services include site performance assessments, security and firewall 
maintenance, updates, document uploads, hosting and domain renewals, website backups, etc.  Maintained 
by Governmental Management Services 
 
Office Supplies 
 
This item includes the cost of miscellaneous office supplies. 
 
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions 
 
The District is required to pay an annual fee to the Department of Economic Opportunity for $175.  This is 
the only expense under this category for the District. 
 
Amenity Center 
 
Insurance 
 
The District's Property Insurance policy will be with Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust.  PGIT specializes 
in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies. 
 
General Facility Maintenance 
 
Cost of routine repairs and maintenance of the District’s common areas and Amenity Center. 
 
Repairs and Replacements 
 
Represents any funds that will be used to make repairs and replacements to facility or equipment in the 
District Amenity Center 
 
Recreation Passes 
 
Represents the estimated cost for access cards to the District’s Amenity Center. 
 
Postage 
 
This item includes mailing of newsletter to residents. 
 
Printing & Email Marketing 
 
Includes costs of publishing newsletter and other mailings/emails associated with the amenity center. 

5



 
 

Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

General Fund Budget 

 

 
Office Supplies 
 
This item includes the cost of office supplies needed for the operation of the amenity center. 
 
Other Current Charges  
 
Any unanticipated costs to the amenity center 
 
Permit Fees 
 
Represents Permit Fees paid to the Department of Health for the swimming pool. 
 
Contingency 
 
This item includes a contingency for any unanticipated and unscheduled cost to the District, postage for 
mailing of newsletter to residents, and costs of publishing newsletter and other mailings/emails associated 
with the amenity center. 
 
Amenity Management 
 
Services provided by Riverside Management Services, Inc. to provide management services of amenity center. 
 

                       
 
Facility Assistant 
 
Services provided by Riverside Management Services, Inc. to provide part time staffing of amenity center. 
 

                                             
 
Special Events 
 
This item represents the estimated cost for the District to host any special events for the community 
throughout the Fiscal Year. 
 
Utilities: 
 
Water 
 
District currently has one account with CCUA for water at the Amenity Center.  Budget includes growth for 
additional use and new accounts. 
 

                        
 

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $5,619 $67,426

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $1,624 $19,489

Account # Service Address      Monthly             Annual
257235 4200 Pine Ridge Pkwy Amenity  $409 $4,908

Contingency $41 $492
$450 $5,400

6



 
 

Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

General Fund Budget 

 

Electric 
 
District currently has one account with Clay Electric for electric at the Amenity Center.  Budget includes 
growth for additional use and new accounts. 
 

                                    
 
Cable/Phone/Internet 
 
Cost of cable, telephone and internet service provided by Comcast for the Amenity Center. 
 
Management Contracts 
 
Field Management Services 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services, Inc. for the supervision and on-site 
management of Pine Ridge Plantation. 
 

                    
 
Lifeguards 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services, Inc. to provide lifeguard services during 
pool operation season. 
 
Pool Maintenance 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services, Inc. to provide pool cleaning and 
maintenance services.  Monthly service is for two cleanings, plus the cost of chemicals.  During summer 
months, cleanings may be increased to three times a week. 
 

                                         
 
Pool Chemicals 
 
Poolsure will provide the necessary chemicals for the Amenity Center pool. 
 

                    
 
                  
 
 

Account # Service Address Monthly Annual
7808611 4200 Pine Ridge/Amenity $1,600 $19,200

Contingency $483 $5,800
$2,083 $25,000

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $2,136 $25,630

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $1,193 $14,310

Vendor Monthly Annual
Poolsure $1,506 $18,069
Contingency $301 $3,614

$1,807 $21,683

7



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

General Fund Budget 
Janitorial Service 

The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services to provide janitorial services for the Amenity 
Center.   

Janitorial Supplies 

All supplies needed for janitorial services. 

Refuse Service 

This item includes the cost of garbage disposal for the District contracted with Advanced Disposal. 

Security/Monitoring 

The District employs off-duty officers through the Clay County Sheriff’s Office to provide security services for 
the District.   Also contracted with SafeTouch for security monitoring alarm, Keatings Communications for 
annual monitoring for security cameras and annual cloud storage, and Pye-Barker Fire and Safety for annual 
fire monitoring.  

Gate Monitor 

Services provided by Riverside Management Services, Inc. to check people in and out at the pool gate. 

Grounds Maintenance: 

Landscape Maintenance 

The District has contracted with Brightview Landscape Services Inc to provide landscaping services to all the 
common areas within the District. 

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $775 $9,304

Vendor Monthly Annual
Clay County Sheriffs Officers $960 $11,520
Safetouch $88 $1,057
Keatings Communications $2,970
Keatings Communications $1,190
Pye-Barker Annual Monitoring $900
Contingency $84 $1,009

$1,132 $18,646

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $512 $6,146

Vendor Monthly Annual
Brightview Landscape Srvcs Inc $11,662 $139,947

8



 
 

Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

General Fund Budget 

 

Lake Maintenance 
 
The District has contracted with The Lake Doctors to perform monthly service to include inspections and 
treats as necessary for the control and prevention of aquatic weeds and algae and RMS for trash pickup. 
 

                           
                        
Electric 
 
The District currently has the following accounts with Clay Electric. 
 

               
 
Water 
 
The District currently has the following accounts with CCUA. Budget includes growth for additional use and 
new accounts. 
 

              
 
Repair & Maintenance 
 
Regular maintenance and replacement. 
 
 
 

Vendor Monthly Annual
The Lake Doctors $850 $10,200

Fish Stocking $1,900
RMS $200 $2,400

Contingency $28 $330
$1,078 $14,830

Account # Service Address      Monthly Average
8824799 4201-1 Pine Ridge Pkwy #1 Irrig Clock $30 $360
8824808 1217-1 Camp Ridge Land $30 $360
7371685 4392-1 Pine Ridge Park - Irrigation $30 $360
8824805 1452-2 Tynes Blvd - Entrance $39 $468
8837872 1484 Tynes Blvd #2 Irrig Clock/Sign $40 $480

Contingency $35 $472
$204 $2,500

Account # Service Address      Monthly Average
246892 1376-1 Tynes Blvd Reclaimed $150 $1,800
246893 1475-1 Tyne Blvd Reclaimed $150 $1,800
248250 4228-1 Pine Ridge Pkwy Reclaimed $450 $5,400
248496 4354-1 Foggy Day Dr Reclaimed Irrigation $200 $2,400
248497 4421-1 Pine Ridge Pkwy Reclaimed $220 $2,640
248498 4688-1 Pine Lake Dr Reclaimed $25 $300
248499 4201-2 Pine Ridge Pkwy Irrigation $64 $768
257236 4200-1 Pine Ridge Pkwy Irrigation $200 $2,400
260144 4200 Pine Ridge Pkwy Reclaimed $350 $4,200

Contingency $358 $4,292
$2,167 $26,000

9



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

General Fund Budget 
Contingencies 

This item includes a contingency for any unanticipated and unscheduled cost to the District. 

Capital Reserve 

The District has established a Capital Reserve to fund renewal and replacement of the District’s capital related 
facilities and equipment.   

10



Pine Ridge Plantation
Community Development District Debt Service Fund

Series 2006 A/2020A1 and A2

Adopted Actual YTD Projected Projected Proposed
Description Budget FY2023 As of 4/30/2023 Next 5 Months Thru 9/30/23 Budget FY2024

Revenues

Assessments - Tax Roll $926,572 $920,417 $0 $920,417 $926,572
Interest Income $250 $16,776 $8,400 $25,176 $12,500
Fund Balance $161,970 $163,496 $0 $163,496 $170,040

Total Revenues $1,088,792 $1,100,689 $8,400 $1,109,089 $1,109,112

Expenditures
Series 2020A1
Interest 11/1 $106,824 $106,824 $0 $106,824 $99,524
Interest 51 $106,824 $0 $106,824 $106,824 $99,524
Principal 5/1 $480,000 $0 $480,000 $480,000 $500,000
Prepayment 5/1 $0 $0 $10,000 $10,000 $0

Series 2020A2
Interest 11/1 $45,200 $45,200 $0 $45,200 $43,181
Interest 51 $45,200 $0 $45,200 $45,200 $43,181
Principal 5/1 $140,000 $0 $140,000 $140,000 $140,000
Prepayment 5/1 $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000 $0

Total Expenses $924,049 $152,024 $787,024 $939,048 $925,411

Other Bond Service Costs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $164,743 $948,664 ($778,624) $170,040 $183,701

A1 Interest Expense - 11/1/24 $92,024
A2 Interest Expense - 11/1/24 $41,256

$133,281

Total Gross Assessment $985,715
Less: Discounts & Collections (6%) ($59,143)

Total Net Assessment $926,572
Units 737 

11



DATE BALANCE RATE PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

11/1/23 8,120,000.00$      99,524.38$             99,524.38$               
5/1/24 8,120,000.00$      500,000.00$          99,524.38$             

11/1/24 7,620,000.00$      92,024.38$             691,548.76$             
5/1/25 7,620,000.00$      510,000.00$          92,024.38$             

11/1/25 7,110,000.00$      86,924.38$             688,948.76$             
5/1/26 7,110,000.00$      520,000.00$          86,924.38$             

11/1/26 6,590,000.00$      81,724.38$             688,648.76$             
5/1/27 6,590,000.00$      530,000.00$          81,724.38$             

11/1/27 6,060,000.00$      76,424.38$             688,148.76$             
5/1/28 6,060,000.00$      545,000.00$          76,424.38$             

11/1/28 5,515,000.00$      70,974.38$             692,398.76$             
5/1/29 5,515,000.00$      555,000.00$          70,974.38$             

11/1/29 4,960,000.00$      65,424.38$             691,398.76$             
5/1/30 4,960,000.00$      565,000.00$          65,424.38$             

11/1/30 4,395,000.00$      59,421.25$             689,845.63$             
5/1/31 4,395,000.00$      580,000.00$          59,421.25$             

11/1/31 3,815,000.00$      51,808.75$             691,230.00$             
5/1/32 3,815,000.00$      595,000.00$          51,808.75$             

11/1/32 3,220,000.00$      43,999.38$             690,808.13$             
5/1/33 3,220,000.00$      610,000.00$          43,999.38$             

11/1/33 2,610,000.00$      35,993.13$             689,992.51$             
5/1/34 2,610,000.00$      625,000.00$          35,993.13$             

11/1/34 1,985,000.00$      27,790.00$             688,783.13$             
5/1/35 1,985,000.00$      645,000.00$          27,790.00$             

11/1/35 1,340,000.00$      18,760.00$             691,550.00$             
5/1/36 1,340,000.00$      660,000.00$          18,760.00$             

11/1/36 680,000.00$         9,520.00$               688,280.00$             
5/1/37 680,000.00$         680,000.00$          9,520.00$               

689,520.00$             
 8,120,000.00$      1,640,626.34$       9,760,626.34$         

Series 2020 A-1 Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bond Combined

Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District

12



DATE BALANCE RATE PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

11/1/23 2,475,000.00$      43,181.25$             43,181.25$               
5/1/24 2,475,000.00$      140,000.00$          43,181.25$             

11/1/24 2,335,000.00$      41,256.25$             224,437.50$             
5/1/25 2,335,000.00$      145,000.00$          41,256.25$             

11/1/25 2,190,000.00$      39,262.50$             225,518.75$             
5/1/26 2,190,000.00$      150,000.00$          39,262.50$             

11/1/26 2,040,000.00$      36,787.50$             226,050.00$             
5/1/27 2,040,000.00$      155,000.00$          36,787.50$             

11/1/27 1,885,000.00$      34,230.00$             226,017.50$             
5/1/28 1,885,000.00$      160,000.00$          34,230.00$             

11/1/28 1,725,000.00$      31,590.00$             225,820.00$             
5/1/29 1,725,000.00$      165,000.00$          31,590.00$             

11/1/29 1,560,000.00$      28,867.50$             225,457.50$             
5/1/30 1,560,000.00$      170,000.00$          28,867.50$             

11/1/30 1,390,000.00$      26,062.50$             224,930.00$             
5/1/31 1,390,000.00$      175,000.00$          26,062.50$             

11/1/31 1,215,000.00$      22,781.25$             223,843.75$             
5/1/32 1,215,000.00$      185,000.00$          22,781.25$             

11/1/32 1,030,000.00$      19,312.50$             227,093.75$             
5/1/33 1,030,000.00$      190,000.00$          19,312.50$             

11/1/33 840,000.00$         15,750.00$             225,062.50$             
5/1/34 840,000.00$         200,000.00$          15,750.00$             

11/1/34 640,000.00$         12,000.00$             227,750.00$             
5/1/35 640,000.00$         205,000.00$          12,000.00$             

11/1/35 435,000.00$         8,156.25$               225,156.25$             
5/1/36 435,000.00$         215,000.00$          8,156.25$               

11/1/36 220,000.00$         4,125.00$               227,281.25$             
5/1/37 220,000.00$         220,000.00$          4,125.00$               

224,125.00$             
 2,475,000.00$      726,725.00$           3,201,725.00$         

Community Development District

Series 2020 A-2 Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bond Combined

Pine Ridge Plantation 

13



Pine Ridge Plantation
Community Development District Capital Reserve

 

Adopted Actual YTD Projected Projected Proposed
Description Budget FY2023 As of 4/30/2023 Next 5 Months Thru 9/30/23 Budget FY2024

Revenues      

Capital Reserve - Transfer In $60,805 $60,805 $0 $60,805 $62,629
Interest $500 $4,370 $2,100 $6,470 $3,200
Carry Forward Surplus $273,556 $261,908 $0 $261,908 $210,737
 
Total Revenues $334,861 $327,083 $2,100 $329,183 $276,566

Expenditures

Other Current $0 $30 $0 $30 $100
Capital Outlay* $30,000 $0 $46,816 $46,816 $0
Culture/Recreation $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Repair and Maintenance** $0 $18,400 $53,200 $71,600 $54,148

Total Expenses $60,000 $18,430 $100,016 $118,446 $54,248

Other Sources and (Uses)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 ($95,027) $0 ($95,027) $0

Total Other Financial Sources/(Uses) $0 ($95,027) $0 ($95,027) $0

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $274,861 $213,626 ($97,916) $210,737 $222,318

*$46,816 Landscape sod and hydro seed for new areas and related Professional invoices.
**$53,200 Slide Tower Repairs and Fence Relocation Project

14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-04 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PINE RIDGE 
PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DESIGNATING THE DATE, 
TIME AND LOCATION OF A PUBLIC HEARING AND AUTHORIZATION TO PUBLISH 
NOTICE OF SUCH HEARING FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADOPTING REVISED 
SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION RULES. 
 
WHEREAS, the Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District (“District”) is a local 

unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) is authorized by Sections 
190.011(5), Florida Statutes, to adopt rules and orders pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida 
Statutes. 

WHEREAS, to provide for efficient and effective District operations, the Board finds that it 
is in the best interests of the District to adopt a revised Suspension and Termination of Access 
Rule (“Suspension and Termination Rules”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
SECTION 1.  The Board will hold a public hearing to adopt revised Suspension and 

Termination Rules, a proposed copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. The Board will hold 
a public hearing on July 18, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., at the Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity Center, 400 
Pine Ridge Plantation, Middleburg, Florida 32068.  

 
SECTION 2. The District Secretary is directed to publish notice of the hearing in 

accordance with Section 120.54, Florida Statutes. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF MAY 2023. 

 
ATTEST:      PINE RIDGE PLANTATION  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
             
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
EXHIBIT A:   Proposed Revised Suspension and Termination of Access Rule 



 

2 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Proposed Revised Suspension and Termination of Access Rule 



 

3 
 

SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF ACCESS RULE 
 

Law Implemented: ss. 120.69, 190.011, 190.012, Fla. Stat. (2022) 
Effective Date: _______________, 2023 

 
 
 

In accordance with Chapters 190 and 120 of the Florida Statutes, and on 
_______________, 2023 at a duly noticed public meeting, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) 
of the Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District (“District”) adopted the 
following rules / policies to govern disciplinary and enforcement matters. All prior rules / 
policies of the District governing this subject matter are hereby rescinded for any violations 
occurring after the date stated above. 
 
 
 

1. Introduction. This rule addresses disciplinary and enforcement matters relating to 
the use of the Amenity Center, Amenity Facility, and other District Property (together, the 
“Amenities”). 

2. General Rule. All persons using or entering the Amenities are responsible for 
compliance with the rules and policies established for the safe operations of the District’s 
Amenities. 

3. Access Cards.  Access Cards are the property of the District.  The District may 
request surrender of, or may deactivate, a person’s Access Card for violation of the District’s 
rules and policies established for the safe operations of the District’s Amenities.  

4. Suspension and Termination of Rights. The District shall have the right to 
restrict, suspend, or terminate access to the Amenities of any person and members of their 
household to use all or a portion of the Amenities for any of the following acts (each, a 
“Violation”):  

a. Submitting false information on any application for use of the Amenities, including 
but not limited to facility rental applications; 

b. Failing to abide by the terms of rental applications; 
c. Permitting the unauthorized use of a key fob or Access Card or otherwise facilitates 

or allows unauthorized use of the Amenities; 
d. Exhibiting inappropriate behavior or repeatedly wearing inappropriate attire; 
e. Failing to pay amounts owed to the District in a proper and timely manner (with 

the exception of special assessments); 
f. Failing to abide by any District rules or policies (e.g., Policies and Procedures); 
g. Treating the District’s staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, 

Patrons, or guests, in a harassing or abusive manner; 
h. Damaging, destroying, rendering inoperable or interfering with the operation of 

District property, or other property located on District property;  
i. Failing to reimburse the District for property damaged by such person, or a minor for 

whom the person has charge, or a guest;  
j. Engaging in conduct that is likely to endanger the health, safety, or welfare of the 



 

4 
 

District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, Patrons, or 
guests;  

k. Committing or is alleged, in good faith, to have committed a crime on or off District 
property that leads the District to reasonably believe the health, safety or welfare of 
the District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, [Patrons, 
or guests is likely endangered; 

l. Engaging in another Violation after a verbal warning has been given by staff (which 
verbal warning is not required); or 

m. Such person’s guest or a member of their household commits any of the above 
Violations.  

 
Termination of Amenities access shall only be considered and implemented by the Board in 
situations that pose a long term or continuing threat to the health, safety and/or welfare of the 
District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, Patrons, or guests.  The 
Board, in its sole discretion and upon motion of any Board member, may vote to rescind a 
termination of Amenities access.   
 

5. Administrative Reimbursement.  The Board may in its discretion require 
payment of an administrative reimbursement of up to Five Hundred Dollars ($500) in order to 
offset the legal and/or administrative expenses incurred by the District as a result of a Violation 
(“Administrative Reimbursement”).  Such Administrative Reimbursement shall be in addition to 
any suspension or termination of Amenities access, any applicable legal action warranted by the 
circumstances, and/or any Property Damage Reimbursement (defined below).  

6. Property Damage Reimbursement.  If damage to District property occurred in 
connection with a Violation, the person or persons who caused the damage, or the person whose 
guest caused the damage, or the person who has charge of a minor that caused the damage, shall 
reimburse the District for the costs of cleaning, repairing, and/or replacing the property 
(“Property Damage Reimbursement”).   Such Property Damage Reimbursement shall be in 
addition to any suspension or termination of Amenities access, any applicable legal action 
warranted by the circumstances, and/or any Administrative Reimbursement. 

7. Removal from Amenities. The District Manager, General Manager, Amenity 
Manager and onsite staff each have the independent ability to remove any person from the 
Amenities if a Violation occurs, or if in his or her discretion, it is in the District’s best interest to 
do so.  

8. Initial Suspension from Amenities.  The District Manager, General Manager, 
Amenity Manager or his or her designee may at any time restrict or suspend for cause or causes, 
including but not limited to a Violation, any person’s access to the Amenities until a date not 
later than the next regularly scheduled meeting date of the Board that is scheduled to occur at 
least twenty-one (21) days after the date of initial suspension.  In the event of such a suspension, 
the District Manager or his or her designee shall mail a letter to the person suspended referencing 
the conduct at issue, the sections of the District’s rules and policies violated, the time, date, and 
location of the next regular Board meeting where the person’s suspension will be presented to 
the Board, and a statement that the person has a right to appear before the Board and offer 
testimony and evidence why the suspension should be lifted.  If the person is a minor, the letter 
shall be sent to the adults at the address within the community where the minor resides.   



 

5 
 

9. Hearing by the Board; Administrative Reimbursement; Property Damage 
Reimbursement.   

a. At the Board meeting referenced in the letter sent under Section 8 above, or 
as soon thereafter as a Board meeting is held if the meeting referenced in 
the letter is canceled, a hearing shall be held at which both District staff and 
the person subject to the suspension shall be given the opportunity to appear, 
present testimony and evidence, cross examine witnesses present, and make 
arguments.  The Board may also ask questions of District staff, the person 
subject to the suspension, and witnesses present.  All persons are entitled to 
be represented by a licensed Florida attorney at such hearing.   

b. After the presentations by District staff and the person subject to the 
suspension, the Board shall consider the facts and circumstances and 
determine whether to lift or extend the suspension or impose a termination.  
In determining the length of any suspension, or a termination, the Board 
shall consider the nature of the conduct, the circumstances of the conduct, 
the number of rules or policies violated, the person’s escalation or de-
escalation of the situation, and any prior Violations and/or suspensions   

c. The Board shall also determine whether an Administrative Reimbursement 
is warranted and, if so, set the amount of such Administrative 
Reimbursement. 

d. The Board shall also determine whether a Property Damage Reimbursement 
is warranted and, if so, set the amount of such Property Damage 
Reimbursement.  If the cost to clean, repair and/or replace the property is 
not yet available, the Property Damage Reimbursement shall be fixed at the 
next regularly scheduled Board meeting after the cost to clean, repair, and/or 
replace the property is known. 

e. After the conclusion of the hearing, the District Manager shall mail a letter 
to the person suspended identifying the Board’s determination at such 
hearing. 

 
10. Suspension by the Board.  The Board on its own initiative acting at a noticed 

public meeting may elect to consider a suspension of a person’s access for committing any of the 
Violations outlined in Section 4.  In such circumstance, a letter shall be sent to the person 
suspended which contains all the information required by Section 8, and the hearing shall be 
conducted in accordance with Section 9. 

11. Automatic Extension of Suspension for Non-Payment.  Unless there is an 
affirmative vote of the Board otherwise, no suspension or termination will be lifted or expire 
until all Administrative Reimbursements and Property Damage Reimbursements have been paid 
to the District.  If an Administrative Reimbursement or Property Damage Reimbursement is not 
paid by its due date, the District reserves the right to request surrender of, or deactivate, all Access 
Cards or key fobs associated with an address within the District until such time as the outstanding 
amounts are paid.   

12. Appeal of Board Suspension.  After the hearing held by the Board required by 
Section 9, a person subject to a suspension or termination may appeal the suspension or 



 

6 
 

termination, or the assessment or amount of an Administrative Reimbursement or Property 
Damage Reimbursement, to the Board by filing a written request for an appeal (“Appeal 
Request”).  The filing of an Appeal Request shall not result in the stay of the suspension or 
termination.  The Appeal Request shall be filed within thirty (30) calendar days after mailing of 
the notice of the Board’s determination as required by Section 9(e), above.  For purposes of this 
Rule, wherever applicable, filing will be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by 
the District. Failure to file an Appeal Request shall constitute a waiver of all rights to protest the 
District’s suspension or termination, and shall constitute a failure to exhaust administrative 
remedies.  The District shall consider the appeal at a Board meeting and shall provide reasonable 
notice to the person of the Board meeting where the appeal will be considered.  At the appeal 
stage, no new evidence shall be offered or considered.  Instead, the appeal is an opportunity for 
the person subject to the suspension or termination to argue, based on the evidence elicited at the 
hearing, why the suspension or termination should be reduced or vacated.  The Board may take 
any action deemed by it in its sole discretion to be appropriate under the circumstances, including 
affirming, overturning, or otherwise modifying the suspension or termination. The Board’s 
decision on appeal shall be final. 

13. Legal Action; Criminal Prosecution; Trespass.  If any person is found to have 
committed a Violation, such person may additionally be subject to arrest for trespassing or other 
applicable legal action, civil or criminal in nature.  If a person subject to a suspension or 
termination is found at the Amenities, such Person will be subject to arrest for trespassing.  If a 
trespass warrant is issued to a person by a law enforcement agency, the District has no obligation 
to seek a withdrawal or termination of the trespass warrant even though the issuance of the 
trespass warrant may effectively prevent a person from using the District’s Amenities after 
expiration of a suspension imposed by the District. 

14. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this rule shall be held 
to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this rule shall continue in full force 
and effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared that the remainder of this rule would 
have been adopted despite the invalidity or ineffectiveness of such section. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



  

Kutak Rock LLP 
107 West College Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

office 850.692.7300 

Wesley S. Haber 
wesley.haber@kutakrock.com 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
FROM: WESLEY S. HABER 
 
DATE:  MARCH 13, 2023 
 
RE:  PUBLIC RECORDS RETENTION 
 
 

The purpose of this memorandum and attached resolutions are to update and/or establish 
the District’s Records Retention Policy, including to reflect management of transitory messages 
and establishment that the electronic record is considered the official record.  

 
The District essentially has two options to ensure compliance with applicable Records 

Retention laws.   
 

First, the District can adopt the Florida Records Retention Schedules modified to ensure 
the District is also retaining the records required by federal law and the trust indenture.  This option 
allows for the timely destruction of records while ensuring that the District’s policy is in 
compliance with state and federal laws.  Kutak Rock has prepared a resolution that implements 
this option, and it is attached hereto as Option 1. 
 

Second, a District can adopt the Florida Records Retention Schedules as written and adopt 
a policy that states that the District will not be destroying any records at this point in time, with 
the exception of Transitory Messages.  Kutak Rock has prepared a resolution that implements this 
option, and it is attached hereto as Option 2. 
 

It is important to note that the District could change its Records Retention policy at a later 
date so long as the District’s amendment was consistent with the notice and hearing provisions 
found in Chapter 190. 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

  

 
 

OPTION 1 



 

  

RESOLUTION 2023-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PINE RIDGE 
PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE 
APPOINTMENT OF A RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; PROVIDING 
THE DUTIES OF THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; ADOPTING A 
RECORDS RETENTION POLICY; DETERMINING THE ELECTRONIC RECORD TO BE 
THE OFFICIAL RECORD; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District (the “District”) is a 
local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules to govern 
the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for the conduct 
of District business; and 

WHEREAS, Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, requires the District to establish and 
maintain an active and continuing program for the economical and efficient management of 
records and to provide for the appointment of a records management liaison officer (“Records 
Management Liaison Officer”); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires for the Records Management Liaison Officer to be an 
employee of the District or an employee of the District Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to authorize the District’s records custodian to appoint a 
Records Management Liaison Officer, which may or may not be the District’s records custodian; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to prescribe duties of the Records Management Liaison 
Officer and provide for the assignment of additional duties; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the best interests 
of the District to adopt by resolution a Records Retention Policy (the “Policy”) for immediate use 
and application; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to provide for future amendment of the Records Retention 
Policy. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

SECTION 1. The District hereby authorizes the District’s records custodian to appoint a 
Records Management Liaison Officer and report such appointment to the appropriate State of 
Florida agencies.  A Records Management Liaison Officer shall be an employee of the District or 



 

  

the District Manager.  The Board, and the District’s records custodian, shall each have the 
individual power to remove the Records Management Liaison Officer at any time for any reason.  
Immediately following the removal or resignation of a Records Management Liaison Officer, the 
District’s records custodian shall appoint a replacement Records Management Liaison Officer. 

SECTION 2. The duties of the Records Management Liaison Officer shall include the 
following: 

A. Serve as the District’s contact with the Florida Department of State, State Library 
and Archives of Florida; 

B. Coordinate the District’s records inventory;  

C. Maintain records retention and disposition forms;  

D. Coordinate District records management training;  

E. Develop records management procedures consistent with the attached Records 
Retention Policy, as amended;  

F. Participate in the development of the District’s development of electronic record 
keeping systems;  

G. Submit annual compliance statements;  

H. Work with the Florida Department of State, State Library and Archives of Florida to 
establish individual retention schedules for the District, from time to time and as may be 
necessary; and 

I. Such other duties as may be assigned by the Board or the District’s records 
custodian in the future. 

SECTION 3. The District hereby adopts as its Records Retention Policy the applicable 
provisions of Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, the rules adopted by the Division of Library and 
Information Services of the Department of State (“Division”) pursuant to Section 257.36, Florida 
Statutes, and the General Records Schedules established by the Division.  However, the District 
will retain certain records longer than required by the General Records Schedules established by 
the Division as set forth in Exhibit A.  To the extent the above statute, rules or schedules are 
amended or supplemented in the future, the District’s Records Retention Policy shall 
automatically incorporate such amendment or supplement provided that such automatic 
amendment shall not reduce the retention times set forth in Exhibit A.  The Records Retention 
Policy shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the Board amends the Policy. 

SECTION 4. In accordance with section 668.50, Florida Statutes, and section 119.01, 
Florida Statutes, the Board finds that the electronic record shall be considered the official record 



 

  

and any paper originals are hereby duplicates which may be disposed of unless required to be 
preserved by any appliable statute, rule or ordinance. 

SECTION 5.   If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 6. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage; shall replace, 
supplant, and supersede any prior policy or resolution of the District regarding records retention; 
and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of May 2023. 

ATTEST:     PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A:  District Amendments to General Records Schedules Established by the Division 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

  
Exhibit A 

 
District Amendments to General Records Schedules established by the Division 

 
ADVERTISEMENTS: LEGAL (Item #25) 
The District shall retain mailed and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating to 
proceedings under uniform method of collection of debt assessments permanently.  The District shall retain mailed 
and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating to the levy of assessments securing bonds 
for five (5) fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released, or until three (3) calendar years after related 
bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
AUDITS: INDEPENDENT (Item #56) 
The District shall retain the record copy of independent audits for ten (10) fiscal years or until three (3) calendar 
years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  DETAIL (Item #340) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for five (5) fiscal years 
provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related bonds are redeemed, 
whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  SUMMARY (Item #341) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) fiscal years 
provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related bonds are redeemed, 
whichever is later. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ANNUAL REPORTS (Item #107) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) fiscal years 
provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, 
whichever is later. 
 
INCIDENT REPORT FILES (Item #241) 
The District shall retain incident reports for five (5) anniversary years from the date of the incident. 
 
MINUTES:  OFFICIAL MEETINGS (PRELIMINARY/AUDIO RECORDINGS/VIDEO RECORDINGS (Item #4) 
The District shall retain audio recordings of board of supervisor meetings for five (5) calendar years after adoption 
of the official minutes. 
 
PROJECT FILES:  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT (Item #136) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for projects funded with bonds for ten (10) fiscal years after 
completion of the project provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after all 
related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  CONDEMNATION/DEMOLITION (Item #364) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for condemnation/demolition projects funded with bonds for 
five (5) anniversary years after final action or until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, 
whichever is later.  The record copy of deeds and easements shall be kept permanently. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  PROPERTY ACQUIRED (Item #172) 
The District shall retain the record copy of documents related to property acquisitions funded with bonds for three 
(3) fiscal years after final disposition of the property provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) 
calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later.  The record copy of deeds and easements 
shall be kept permanently. 



 

  

 
 

OPTION 2 
 



 

  

RESOLUTION 2023-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PINE RIDGE 
PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE 
APPOINTMENT OF A RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; PROVIDING 
THE DUTIES OF THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; ADOPTING A 
RECORDS RETENTION POLICY; DETERMINING THE ELECTRONIC RECORD TO BE 
THE OFFICIAL RECORD; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District (“District”) is a local 
unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules to govern 
the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for the conduct 
of District business; and 

WHEREAS, Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, requires the District to establish and 
maintain an active and continuing program for the economical and efficient management of 
records and to provide for the appointment of a records management liaison officer (“Records 
Management Liaison Officer”); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires for the Records Management Liaison Officer to be an 
employee of the District or an employee of the District Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to authorize the District’s records custodian to appoint a 
Records Management Liaison Officer, which may or may not be the District’s records custodian; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to prescribe duties of the Records Management Liaison 
Officer and provide for the assignment of additional duties; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the best interests 
of the District to adopt by resolution a Records Retention Policy (the “Policy”) for immediate use 
and application; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to provide for future amendment of the Records Retention 
Policy. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

SECTION 1. The District hereby authorizes the District’s records custodian to appoint a 
Records Management Liaison Officer and report such appointment to the appropriate State of 
Florida agencies.  A Records Management Liaison Officer shall be an employee of the District or 



 

  

the District Manager. The Board, and the District’s records custodian, shall each have the 
individual power to remove the Records Management Liaison Officer at any time for any reason.  
Immediately following the removal or resignation of a Records Management Liaison Officer, the 
District’s records custodian shall appoint a replacement Records Management Liaison Officer. 

SECTION 2.   The duties of the Records Management Liaison Officer shall include, but 
not be limited to, the following: 

A. Serve as the District’s contact with the Florida Department of State, State Library 
and Archives of Florida; 

B. Coordinate the District’s records inventory; 

C. Maintain records retention and disposition forms; 

D. Coordinate District records management training; 

E. Develop records management procedures consistent with the attached Records 
Retention Policy, as amended; 

F. Participate in the District’s development of electronic record keeping systems. 

G. Submit annual compliance statements; 

H. Work with the Florida Department of State, State Library and Archives of Florida to 
establish individual retention schedules for the District, from time to time and as may be 
necessary; and 

I. Such other duties as may be assigned by the Board or the District’s records 
custodian in the future. 

 
SECTION 3.  The District hereby adopts as its Records Retention Policy the applicable 

provisions of Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, the rules adopted by the Division of Library and 
Information Services of the Department of State (“Division”) pursuant to Section 257.36, Florida 
Statutes, and the General Records Schedules established by the Division.  However, the District 
hereby extends the minimum retention guidelines contained in the General Records Schedules 
so that the District will retain all public records relating to District business until the Board of 
Supervisors amends the Records Retention Policy to address the disposition of the same. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District shall only retain Transitory Messages until the 
Transitory Message is obsolete, superseded or administrative value is lost in accordance with the 
General Records Schedule for State and Local Government Agencies, Item #146, as incorporated 
by reference in Rule 1B-24.003(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code. To the extent the above 
statute, rules, or schedules are amended or supplemented in the future, the District’s Records 
Retention Policy shall automatically incorporate such amendment or supplement provided that 
such automatic change does not permit the disposition of District records without further action 



 

  

of the Board.  The Records Retention Policy shall remain in full force and effect until such time as 
the Board amends the Policy.   

SECTION 4. In accordance with section 668.50, Florida Statutes, and section 119.01, 
Florida Statutes, the Board finds that the electronic record shall be considered the official record 
and any paper originals are hereby duplicates which may be disposed of unless required to be 
preserved by any appliable statute, rule or ordinance. 

SECTION 5.   If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 6. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage; shall replace, 
supplant, and supersede any prior policy or resolution of the District regarding records retention;  
and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of May 2023. 

ATTEST:     PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Composite Exhibit A: General Records Schedules, GS1-SL and GS3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

Composite Exhibit A 
 

General Records Schedules Established by the Division (GS1-SL and GS3) 
 

[attach, if Option 2 adopted] 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



      Chris H. Chambless 
             Supervisor of Elections 
                Clay County, Florida 

 
                      

P.O. Box 337            500 N. Orange Ave.               Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
(904) 269-6350            Fax (904) 284-0935 

April 15, 2023 
 
 
Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 
Attn.:  Sarah Sweeting 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine FL 32092 
 
Dear Ms. Sweeting: 
 
I have queried the number of eligible voters residing within the Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District as of April 15, 2023.  At this time, there are 1,511 
registered voters residing within the district. 
 
Please provide the contact information and term expiration dates for the current CDD 
Board Members.  I can be reached via the contact information at the bottom of this page 
or via email at Lynn.Gaver@ClayElections.gov.  
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Lynn Gaver, MFCEP 
Clay County Supervisor of Elections Office 
P.O. Box 337 | 500 North Orange Ave. 
Green Cove Springs, FL  32043 
(904) 269-6350 Fax (904) 284-0935 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 

4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida 32068 

904-291-8878 

Date:   May 16, 2023 

To:  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD, Board of Supervisors 

From:  Maria Cranford, Amenity Manager & Operations Manager 

Re:   Monthly Facility Memorandum 

 

Completed Items: 

• Brightview installed mulch on April 3rd  
• New wipes dispenser was installed in the fitness center on April 10th  
• Turner Pest Control completed our quarterly services on April 12th 
• Fitness Pro completed quarterly service and inspection of fitness 

equipment on April 11th 
• Fitness Pro replaced the elbow pad on the bicep machine. Rollers and roller 

pans were replaced on both ellipticals as the machines are still under 
warranty 

• Shower head was replaced in the women’s shower in the pool side 
restroom 

• Swing was fixed at the playground on April 26th 
• Brightview installed pine straw on May 2nd 

 

 

Landscaping & Lakes: 

• BrightView continues to maintain the grounds throughout. 
• Lake Doctor’s continues to maintain the lakes. 
• RMS continues to inspect and clean all the lakes and outfall structures.  

 



Amenity Manager: 

• Total number of rentals for March and April = 16  
• Total number of rentals tentatively scheduled for May and June = 27 
• Aura reading event is being planned for July to do something different for 

the moms in our community 
• BJ’s Wieners and Balls was at the amenity center on April 12th from 5 to 8 

p.m. 
• Frozen Sweets Treat truck was at the amenity center on April 30th from 2 to 

5 p.m. 
• BJ’s Wieners and Balls was scheduled to be at the amenity center on May 

6th for lunch but had to cancel due to projected weather 
• Conch and More will be at the amenity center on May 19th from 5-8 p.m. 
• Six (6) replacement table tops have been ordered for the outdoor tables to 

replace ones that have been broken during strong wind gusts  
• Battery was replaced in the AED machine 
• Flush valve kit was purchased to fix a toilet not properly flushing in the 

women’s pool side restroom 
• HOA continues to hold their monthly meeting at the clubhouse the second 

Thursday of every month 
• PR West HOA is scheduled to use the amenity center for their next meeting 

on June 7th at 6 p.m. 

  

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Pine Ridge Plantation Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, February 15, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Pine Ridge 

Plantation Amenity Center, 4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida. This meeting was 

continued from January 17, 2023.  

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
  
 Matt Biagetti Chairman 
 Jeff Lewis Vice Chairman 
 Nelson Nazario Supervisor 
 Jack Montoya Supervisor 
  
  
 Also, present were: 
 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager 

Wes Haber District Counsel 
 Maria Cranford  Amenity Manager 
 Jay Soriano  GMS 
 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Four Board members were present 

constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments (Regarding Agenda Items 
Listed Below) 

 Ms. Giles noted that copies of the agenda were on the table if anyone wished to follow 

along, and invited any member of the public to speak on agenda matters.  

 Public comments were made on the landscaping. Responses were provided on the issues 

with this particular area and landscaping. Discussion ensued on landscaping.  

 

  



February 15, 2023  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Series 2020 Project: 
A. Update Regarding Series 2020 Project  

Mr. Soriano provided updates regarding the project. He made comments regarding the  

timelines involved and locations, painting of courts timelines, and other issues with delays.  

 

B. Ratification of Pay Requisitions (051-052) 
 Ms. Giles reviewed the pay requisitions. Number 51 was to ETM for $67.50 and Number 

52 was to Hoffman Construction for $293,290. She added that these were anticipated and 

referred to the budget and the February expected payout of $157,689. She noted that left in the 

construction budget account is $111, 213. She added the remainder of the billing will be paid out 

of the capital reserve account.  

   

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Nazario, with all in 
favor, Pay Requisitions (051 and 052), were ratified. 

 

C. Change Orders (15) 
 Ms. Giles noted this change order was for a self-closing mechanism for the two gates that 

is required by the Department of Health.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Montoya, with all 
in favor, Change Order 15, was approved. 

 

 Mr. Nazario had a question regarding the capital reserve account balance. Some other 

projects were discussed for additional expenses and budget concerns. The FY24 budget process 

was discussed and the proposed budget was expected to be approved by May 16th and the 

adoption of the budget will be on July 18th. Staff will begin to review current agreements and 

increases and seek Board’s guidance on future expenses. Various construction plans were further 

discussed.  

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Open Items 
A. Slide Tower 

 Mr. Soriano provided updates on the slide tower. Inspections were discussed and 

timelines. 



February 15, 2023  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

3 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments/Supervisor’s Requests 
 There were comments and discussion on the play area to be sodded, and common areas. 

Comments were made on a resident issue and destroying CDD property. It was suggested to send 

a letter to the resident about CDD property, ATV damages to common area, and policies. 

Specifics on wording of the letter were discussed. The Board discussed safety concerns as well 

as property damage.  

 Another question was asked regarding policies on commercial vehicles. Further 

discussion was held on specific policy and temporary and permanent parking.   

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – 03/21/23 @ 6:00 
p.m. at the Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity 
Center  

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting is scheduled for March 21, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the 

Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity Center.  

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Montoya, seconded by Mr. Lewis, with all in 
favor, the meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Pine Ridge Plantation Community 

Development District was held on Tuesday, March 21, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Pine Ridge 

Plantation Amenity Center, 4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida.  

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
  
 Matt Biagetti Chairman 
 Jeff Lewis Vice Chairman 
 Nelson Nazario Supervisor 
 Jack Montoya Supervisor 
 Jerry Ritchie Supervisor 
  
  
 Also, present were: 
 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager 

Wes Haber by phone District Counsel 
 Maria Cranford  Amenity Manager 
 Jay Soriano  GMS 
 Rodney Hicks Brightview 
 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Five Board members were present 

constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments (Regarding Agenda Items 
Listed Below) 

 Ms. Giles noted that copies of the agenda were on the table if anyone wished to follow 

along and invited any member of the public to speak on agenda matters. There were no 

comments.  

 

  



March 21, 2023  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Series 2020 Project: 
A. Update Regarding Series 2020 Project  

 Ms. Giles stated in the agenda package was an email from Paul Hoffman and also the 

punch list from the walk-through conducted with the Vice Chair, Mr. George Mosley, Paul 

Hoffman, Mike Lucas, Jay Soriano, Maria Cranford and Ms. Giles. The email has the items still 

pending and she asked the Board for input.  

 Mr. Soriano reviewed the list and explained the specific items including sodding and 

safety concerns. Board member asked about the seeding timeline.  

 Ms. Cranford explained other aspects of materials ordered, the safety concerns, security 

cameras, and other incidents. Further discussion ensued on specific items left on the punch list 

to include Item 13 for the Brightview proposal of $6,234.80 for recommended sodding due to 

the sand near the gate, irrigation, and growing grass. Mr. Soriano further described the situation.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Nazario, with all in 
favor, the Brightview Proposal for $6,234.80 for Sodding 
Installation, was approved. 

 

B. Ratification of Pay Requisitions (053-054) 
 Ms. Giles reviewed pay requisition #53 and #54. She noted #54 was to Hoffman 

construction for $64,412. She noted they needed ratification. The Board asked about the balance 

and Ms. Giles noted the balance for Hoffman is $95,027. She added there would be one more 

for District Counsel and another from ETM, and another small one for closeout purposes. She 

added there is $15,000 left in the construction and the rest would come out of capital reserves.  

   

On MOTION by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Montoya, with all in 
favor, Pay Requisitions #53 and #54, were approved. 

 

C. Change Orders  
 Ms. Giles noted they did not have any at this time. It was noted that Mr. Soriano 

recommended the removal of the Brightview proposal. He explained the reasons for the 

recommendation. Discussion ensued on sodding, irrigation, seeding, costs, and other specific 

issues. The Board asked a question on a figure for what remains as far as irrigation. It was noted 

the sections for irrigation and approximate costs of $30,000. The Field costs were also discussed. 



March 21, 2023  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

3 

Board concerns were voiced on capital reserves, rising costs and when to complete the projects 

due to costs. Ms. Giles commented that based on the reserve study and using the capital reserve 

study that based on assets within the District each year for the next 30 years what is needed to 

set aside and take care of the assets. She added last year $60,805 was put into the capital reserve 

fund and is scheduled in a couple of months. She added it shows for next year they should put 

$62,000 in the capital reserve fund. She noted when the study was done when inflation was at 

3%, assessment increase at 3%, and interest at 2%. She stated they would propose up to 5% for 

capital reserve and the fund balance is projected at $274,000. Further discussion ensued on 

capital reserve spending and how to proceed. Specifics and breakdown of costs were discussed 

and what was included. Ms. Giles explained the earmark for capital outlay and unforeseen 

expenses. Future planned projects and costs were discussed. Priority projects were outlined and 

prioritized. Ms. Giles noted she anticipated a 3-5% increase for vendors in the proposed budget 

and a slight increase in assessments.  

 After discussion the Board decided to move forward with approval of a not to exceed 

amount of $50,000 for irrigation, sodding around the courts and field. It was approved to have 

staff work with Chair. It was noted a new updated proposal is needed.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Nazario, with all in 
favor, the Brightview Proposal for Irrigation and Sodding for the 
Courtyard and Sports Field With a Not To Exceed Amount of 
$50,000, and for Staff to Work with Chair, was approved.  

 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Open Items 

A. Sign at Entryway 
 Mr. Soriano reviewed the sign at the entryway.  

 

B. Slide Tower 
 Mr. Soriano provided updates on the specifics of the slide tower proposals. He reviewed 

the costs from JCB for $36,800 and the RMS proposal for $30,000 for maintenance hours to 

dissemble. He noted the proposal including powder coat, reassemble, sealing, rusting, and other 

specifics of the job project.  

 After discussion the Board decided to approve a not to exceed of $66,800 for the slide 

tower repairs.  



March 21, 2023  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

4 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Nazario, with all in 
favor, the JCB Proposal for a Not to Exceed Amount of $66,800 for 
the Slide Repair, was approved. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Audit Engagement Letter 
from Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & 
Frank for Fiscal Year 2022 Audit  

 Ms. Giles stated this audit engagement letter for the fiscal year 2022 audit documents 

and confirms the objective and scope for auding the financial statements. This audit is for the 

year ending on September 30, 2022. This only needs ratification.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Ritchie, with all in 
favor, the Audit Engagement Letter from Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
Gaines & Frank for Fiscal Year 2022, was ratified. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Fiscal Year 2024 Budget  
 Ms. Giles stated there was no document in the agenda but is a continued discussion of 

the 2024 budget. She reminded the Board at the May 16th meeting they will approve a proposed 

budget and will adopt the budget at the July 18th meeting. She reviewed the specifics and the 

expiration of the agreements, the reoccurring expenses, land maintenance, security, and RMS. 

She noted the expectation that some of these will have a 3-5% increases. She reviewed the 

additional expenses for the splash pad, insurance, water and electric that will be forecasted in the 

budget. She added the capital reserve study was done in 2014 at 3% interest rate. She noted these 

will be outlined and the Board can approve a higher budget in May. She added it can be reduced 

when adopted. She notified the Board they would have this for review prior to the meeting.  

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Attorney  

  Mr. Haber had nothing further to report.  

 

B. District Manager  
 Ms. Giles noted she had nothing further to report. She added information on updating the 

capital reserve study and the cost of $2,800. She stated that it was felt they could push this off 

one more year. The Board agreed.  



March 21, 2023  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

5 

C. Engineer – Work Authorization No. 25 
 Ms. Giles reviewed work authorization No. 25 and noted it was consistent with what was 

included in the budget for the engineer. She pointed out the financial page and engineering line 

that was budgeted for $7000 and nothing has been spent and will stay with the District. She asked 

for approval.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Biagetti, with all in 
favor, Work Authorization No. 25, was approved. 

 

D. Amenity & Operations Manager  
1. Report 

 Ms. Cranford reviewed the Amenity Operations report. She included the Easter Event 

activities.  

 
2. Landscape Quality Inspection Report 

 There was nothing further to report. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments/Supervisor’s Requests 
 There was a public comment/question on when the proposed budget would be available 

to the public. Ms. Giles noted it was available a week before the meeting it would be posted on 

the District’s website.  

 Another question was on the responsibility of dumpsters. Mr. Cranford explained the 

issue. Discussion ensued on the specifics of what the problems were and how they were affecting 

the community. Other concerns were discussed such as sodding, costs for homeowners, 

transparency of what the community wanted, surveys, pickleball courts, the number of quotes 

for projects, HOA responsibilities, equipment repairs, and possible suspension of residents for 

violations of rules.  

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Consent Agenda 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 17, 2023 Meeting 

 Ms. Giles stated the minutes of the January 17, 2023 meeting were in the packet for Board 

review. The Board had no changes to the minutes. 

 



March 21, 2023  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

6 

On MOTION by Mr. Nazario, seconded by Mr. Biagetti, with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the January 17, 2023 Meeting, were approved.  

 

B. Balance Sheet and Income Statement of Revenues & Expenditures for the Period 
Ending February 28, 2023 

 Ms. Giles stated these ended February 28, 2023.  

 

C. Assessment Receipts Schedule  
 Ms. Giles stated that they were 98% collected. 

 

D. Approval of Check Register 
 Ms. Giles stated the reviewed the check register and that is broken out for 3 months. 

December was at $29,637, January was at $47,737, and February for a total of $125,874.58. She 

asked for a motion to approve. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Nazario, seconded by Mr. Biagetti, with all in 
favor, the Check Register for $125,874.58, was approved.  

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – 5/16/23 @ 6:00 
p.m. at the Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity 
Center  

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting is scheduled for May 16, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Pine 

Ridge Plantation Amenity Center.  

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Montoya, seconded by Mr. Nazario, with all 
in favor, the meeting was adjourned.  

 
 
 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



Unaudited Financial Reporting
April 30, 2023

Meeting Date
May 16, 2023

Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District



Table of Contents

I.

II.

III.

Financial Statements -  Unaudited Financial Reporting

Special Assessments Report 

Check Registers Summary -3/1/2023 -4/30/2023



Totals
Capital Debt Capital Governmental

General Reserve Service Projects Funds

ASSETS:

CASH $956,094 $150,144 --- --- $1,106,239
INVESTMENTS

Reserve A-1 --- --- $173,593 --- $173,593
Reserve A-2 --- --- $114,609 --- $114,609
Revenue A --- --- $935,129 --- $935,129
Prepayment --- --- $13,536 --- $13,536
Construction --- --- --- $625 $625
State Board $131,980 $63,482 --- --- $195,462
US Bank Custody $61,854 --- --- --- $61,854
Prepaid Expneses --- --- --- --- $0
Due from Other  $2,212 --- --- --- $2,212

TOTAL ASSETS $1,152,140 $213,626 $1,236,866 $625 $2,603,258

LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE --- --- --- --- $0
ACCRUED EXPENSES $5,582 --- --- --- $5,582
RETAINAGE PAYABLE --- --- --- --- $0
DUE TO GENERAL FUND --- --- --- --- $0

TOTAL LIABILITIES $5,582 $0 $0 $0 $5,582

FUND BALANCES:
     NONSPENDABLE $0 --- --- --- $0
     ASSIGNED $43,187 --- --- --- $43,187
     UNASSIGNED $1,103,371 --- --- --- $1,103,371
     RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE --- $1,236,866 --- $1,236,866
     RESTRICTED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS --- $213,626 --- $625 $214,252

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $1,146,558 $213,626 $1,236,866 $625 $2,597,676

TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY $1,152,140 $213,626 $1,236,866 $625 $2,603,258

April 30, 2023
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION

1



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU	04/30/23 THRU	04/30/23 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Tax Collector $681,433 $676,886 $676,886 $0
Misc./Facility Rental Income $3,000 $1,750 $3,525 $1,775
Interest Income $600 $350 $16,493 $16,143

TOTAL REVENUES $685,033 $678,986 $696,904 $17,918

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:

Supervisors Fees/FICA Taxes $10,334 $6,028 $5,167 $861
Engineering $7,000 $4,083 $0 $4,083
Attorney $20,000 $10,000 $6,168 $3,832
Annual Audit $3,175 $0 $0 $0
Assessment Roll $5,260 $5,260 $5,260 $0
Arbitrage $1,200 $600 $600 $0
Trustee $6,000 $4,041 $4,041 $0
Dissemination $5,000 $2,917 $2,917 ($0)
Management Fees $48,830 $28,484 $28,484 ($0)
Info Technology $1,400 $817 $817 ($0)
Telephone $500 $292 $133 $159
Postage $1,000 $583 $215 $368
Printing & Binding $1,200 $700 $387 $313
Insurance $9,948 $8,911 $8,911 $0
Legal Advertising $2,500 $1,458 $303 $1,155
Other Current Charges $600 $350 $182 $168
Website Domain $1,200 $700 $700 $0
Office Supplies $300 $175 $4 $171
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES $125,622 $75,574 $64,463 $11,111

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE:

Landscape Maintenance $126,000 $73,500 $69,974 $3,526
Lake Maintenance $12,930 $7,543 $5,950 $1,593
Electric $2,500 $1,458 $1,064 $394
Water $26,000 $15,167 $7,749 $7,417
Repairs And Maintenance $20,000 $11,667 $7,511 $4,156
Irrigation Repairs $3,500 $2,042 $3,144 ($1,103)
Contingencies $4,451 $2,596 $0 $2,596

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES $195,381 $113,972 $95,393 $18,580

GENERAL FUND
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2023

2



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU	04/30/23 THRU	04/30/23 VARIANCE

GENERAL FUND
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2023

EXPENDITURES:

AMENITY CENTER

Insurance $12,310 $12,310 $14,398 ($2,088)
General Facility Maintenance $17,000 $9,917 $6,762 $3,154
Repairs & Replacements $25,000 $14,583 $10,625 $3,958
Recreational Passes $500 $292 $0 $292
Postage $100 $58 $0 $58
Printing & Email Marketing $125 $73 $0 $73
Office Supplies $700 $408 $205 $203
Other Current Charges $250 $146 $0 $146
Permit Fees $250 $175 $175 $0
Contingency $5,000 $2,917 $0 $2,917
Special Events $15,000 $12,979 $12,979 $0
Refuse Service $9,600 $5,600 $5,759 ($159)
Security $12,500 $7,292 $9,530 ($2,239)
Gate Monitor $6,146 $3,585 $0 $3,585

Utilities
   Water & Sewer $4,500 $2,625 $2,784 ($159)
   Electric $23,000 $13,417 $11,902 $1,515
   Cable/Phone/Internet $4,200 $2,450 $2,652 ($202)

Management Contracts
Amenity Management $61,859 $36,085 $36,084 $0
Facility Assistant $19,489 $11,369 $601 $10,768
Field Management Services $24,179 $14,104 $14,104 $0
Lifeguards $19,080 $0 $0 $0
Pool Maintenance  $13,500 $7,875 $7,875 $0
Pool Chemicals $16,159 $9,426 $9,645 ($218)
Janitorial $8,777 $5,120 $5,120 $0
Janitorial Supplies $4,000 $2,333 $1,414 $919
Holiday Decorations $0 $0 $72 ($72)

AMENITY CENTER EXPENDITURES $303,225 $175,139 $152,688 $22,451

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES AND USES

Capital Reserve - Transfer Out $60,805 $60,805 $60,805 $0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES AND USES $60,805 $60,805 $60,805 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $685,033 $425,490 $373,348 $52,142

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $0 $323,555

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $43,187 $823,003

FUND BALANCE - Ending $43,187 $1,146,558

3



1
ADOPTED
BUDGET OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP TOTAL

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Tax Collector $681,433 $0 $24,848 $625,271 $6,322 $10,136 $1,923 $8,386 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $676,886
Interest Income $600 $2,184 $2,207 $2,334 $3,042 $3,439 $2,502 $786 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,493
Misc./Facility Rental Income $3,000 $600 $0 $0 $850 $850 $1,225 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,525

TOTAL  REVENUES $685,033 $2,784 $27,055 $627,605 $10,214 $14,424 $5,650 $9,172 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $696,904

EXPENDITURES:
ADMINISTRATIVE:

Supervisors Fees/FICA Taxes $10,334 $1,077 $1,077 $0 $1,077 $861 $1,077 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,167
Engineering $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Arbitrage $1,200 $600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600
Dissemination $5,000 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,917
Assessment Roll $5,260 $5,260 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,260
Attorney $20,000 $1,273 $1,196 $0 $1,686 $1,119 $894 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,168
Annual Audit $3,175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Trustee $6,000 $4,041 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,041
Management Fees $48,830 $4,069 $4,069 $4,069 $4,069 $4,069 $4,069 $4,069 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28,484
Info Technology $1,400 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $817
Telephone $500 $0 $52 $27 $55 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $133
Postage $1,000 $10 $61 $12 $17 $15 $7 $94 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $215
Printing & Binding $1,200 $78 $44 $39 $71 $58 $42 $56 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $387
Insurance $9,948 $8,911 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,911
Legal Advertising $2,500 $261 $42 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $303
Other Current Charges $600 $15 $35 $15 $45 $15 $15 $42 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $182
Website Domain $1,200 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $700
Office Supplies $300 $0 $1 $1 $1 $1 $0 $1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES $125,622 $26,402 $7,208 $4,796 $7,654 $6,771 $6,736 $4,895 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $64,463
GROUNDS MAINTENANCE:
Landscape Maintenance $126,000 $0 $11,662 $11,662 $11,662 $11,662 $11,662 $11,662 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $69,974
Lake Maintenance $12,930 $850 $850 $850 $850 $850 $850 $850 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,950
Electric $2,500 $158 $161 $160 $160 $161 $129 $135 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,064
Water $26,000 $1,010 $995 $1,052 $1,354 $1,064 $1,127 $1,147 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,749
Repairs And Maintenance $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,172 $1,267 $1,072 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,511
Irrigation Repairs $3,500 $0 $3,144 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,144
Contingencies $4,451 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES $195,381 $2,018 $16,813 $13,724 $19,198 $15,004 $14,841 $13,794 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $95,393

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
Month-to-Month
Fiscal Year 2023

4



1
ADOPTED
BUDGET OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP TOTAL

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
Month-to-Month
Fiscal Year 2023

AMENITY CENTER
Insurance $12,310 $11,588 $0 $0 $0 $2,810 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,398
General Facility Maintenance $17,000 $1,807 $2,193 $2,288 $474 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,762
Repairs & Replacements $25,000 $0 $1,539 $1,326 $2,476 $4,675 $610 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,625
Recreational Passes $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Postage $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Printing & Email Marketing $125 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Office Supplies $700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $143 $62 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $205
Other Current Charges $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Permit Fees $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175
Contingency $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Events $15,000 $2,892 $2,495 $2,230 $0 $0 $5,363 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,979
Refuse Service $9,600 $778 $778 $778 $856 $856 $856 $856 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,759
Security $12,500 $791 $1,582 $1,709 $924 $4,018 $424 $82 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,530
Gate Monitor $6,146 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0$0
Utilities
   Water & Sewer $4,500 $319 $314 $644 $349 $363 $370 $425 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,784
   Electric $23,000 $1,872 $1,773 $1,601 $1,833 $1,843 $1,585 $1,395 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,902
   Cable/Phone/Internet $4,200 $368 $368 $368 $387 $387 $387 $387 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,652
Management Contracts
Amenity Management $61,859 $5,155 $5,155 $5,155 $5,155 $5,155 $5,155 $5,155 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,084
Facility Assistant $19,489 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $298 $303 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $601
Field Management Services $24,179 $2,015 $2,015 $2,015 $2,015 $2,015 $2,015 $2,015 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,104
Lifeguards $19,080 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Pool Maintenance  $13,500 $1,125 $1,125 $1,125 $1,125 $1,125 $1,125 $1,125 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,875
Pool Chemicals $16,159 $1,207 $1,207 $1,207 $1,506 $1,506 $1,506 $1,506 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,645
Janitorial $8,777 $731 $731 $731 $731 $731 $731 $731 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,120
Janitorial Supplies $4,000 $170 $198 $101 $291 $392 $262 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,414
Holiday Decorations $0 $0 $72 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $72

AMENITY CENTER EXPENDITURES $303,225 $30,820 $21,545 $21,278 $18,122 $26,019 $20,924 $13,980 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $152,688
OTHER SOURCES USES:
Capital Reserve - Transfer Out $60,805 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,805 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,805

OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $60,805 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,805 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,805

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $685,033 $59,240 $45,566 $39,799 $44,974 $47,795 $103,305 $32,669 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $373,348

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $0 ($56,456) ($18,511) $587,806 ($34,760) ($33,370) ($97,655) ($23,498) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $323,555

5



PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

9
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU	04/30/23 THRU	04/30/23 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Capital Reserve Funding - Transfer In $60,805 $60,805 $60,805 $0
Interest $500 $292 $4,370 $4,078

TOTAL REVENUES $61,305 $61,097 $65,175 $4,078

EXPENDITURES:

Other Current $0 $0 $30 ($30)
Capital Outlay $30,000 $17,500 $0 $17,500
Culture/Recreation $30,000 $17,500 $0 $17,500
Repair and Maintenance $0 $0 $18,400 ($18,400)

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $60,000 $35,000 $18,430 $16,570

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 ($95,027) $0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 ($95,027) $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $1,305 ($48,282)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $273,556 $261,908

FUND BALANCE - Ending $274,861 $213,626

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2023

6



PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE FUND 2020 A1 and A2

9
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU	04/30/23 	 THRU	04/30/23 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments  - Tax Roll $926,572 $920,417 $920,417 $0  
Interest Income $250 $146 $16,776 $16,630

 
TOTAL REVENUES $926,822 $920,563 $937,193 $16,630

EXPENDITURES:
DS 2020A1
Interest Expense - 11/1 $106,824 $106,824 $106,824 ($0)
Interest Expense - 5/1 $106,824 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 5/1 $480,000 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 5/1 Prepayment $0 $0 $0 $0

DS 2020A2
Interest Expense - 11/1 $45,200 $45,200 $45,200 $0
Interest Expense - 5/1 $45,200 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 5/1 $140,000 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 5/1 Prepayment $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $924,049 $152,024 $152,024 ($0)

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $2,773 $785,169

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $161,970 $451,698

FUND BALANCE - Ending $164,743 $1,236,866

  

   

 

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2023

7



9
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU	04/30/23 THRU	04/30/23 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Interest Income $0 $0 $8,777 $8,777

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $8,777 $8,777

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay $0 $0 $886,554 ($886,554)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $886,554 ($886,554)

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $95,027 $95,027

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $95,027 $95,027

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $0 ($782,750)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $783,375

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $625

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2023

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 2020

8



Series 2020A1 Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bond
Original Issue Amount: $9,545,000
Interest Rate: 2.00% - 3.00%
Maturity Date: May 1, 2037
Reserve Fund Definition: 25% of  Max Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement: $173,100
Reserve Fund Balance: $173,593

Bonds outstanding - 9/30/20 $9,545,000
Less:  May 1, 2021 (Mandatory) ($455,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Mandatory) ($470,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Prepayment) ($10,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding: $8,610,000
*Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp Surety Bond $173,592.51

Series 2020A2 Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bond
Original Issue Amount: $2,890,000
Interest Rate: 2.75% - 3.75%
Maturity Date: May 1, 2037
Reserve Fund Definition: 50% of  Max Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement: $113,875
Reserve Fund Balance: $114,609

Bonds outstanding - 9/30/20 $2,890,000
Less:  May 1, 2021 (Mandatory) ($130,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Mandatory) ($135,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Prepayment) ($5,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding: $2,620,000

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Long-term Debt Report

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2023 SUMMARY OF ASSESSMENTS

ASSESSED
# UNITS 

ASSESSED
SERIES 2020A 

DEBT ASSESSED
FY23 O&M 
ASSESSED TOTAL ASSESSED

NET TAX ROLL 737 926,571.52           681,411.48          1,607,983.00       

TOTAL ASSESSED NET 737 926,571.52           681,411.48         1,607,983.00      

RECEIVED BALANCE DUE
SERIES 2020A 

DEBT RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED
TAX ROLL 30,468.43            909,014.64           668,499.93          1,577,514.57       

TOTAL RECEIPTS 30,468.43            909,014.64           668,499.93         1,577,514.57      

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS
CLAY COUNTY 
DISTRIBUTION DATE RECEIVED

SERIES 2020 DEBT 
RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL

1 11/9/2022 1,202.48               884.31 2,086.79              
2 11/16/2022 6,033.00               4,436.73              10,469.73            
3 11/30/2022 26,552.98             19,527.37            46,080.35            
4 12/12/2022 798,921.58           587,536.23          1,386,457.81       
5 12/19/2022 51,310.91             37,734.64            89,045.55            
6 1/11/2023 8,596.67               6,322.09              14,918.76            
7 2/7/2023 13,782.09             10,135.51            23,917.60            
8 3/7/2023 2,614.93               1,923.05              4,537.98              

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

TOTAL FY18 TAX ROLL RECEIPTS            909,014.64           668,499.93        1,577,514.57 

% TAX ROLL COLLECTED 98.11% 98.11% 98.11%
TOTAL COLLECTED 98.11% 98.11% 98.11%

9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



Date Check Numbers Amount
 
General Fund

3/1/2023 - 3/31/2023   3160-3173 556,407.87$                  
4/1/2023 - 4/30/2023 3174-3181 33,554.42$                   

589,962.29$              

Utilities and Autopayments

March 2, 2023 CCUA 1,427.22$                     
March 2, 2023 Clay Electric 2,004.00$                     
March 7, 2023 Dept of Health 175.35$                        
March 17, 2023 Waste Management 856.11$                        
March 16, 2023 SafeTouch 88.05$                         
March 27, 2023 Comcast 387.14$                        
April 13, 2023 Waste Management 856.11$                        
April 18, 2023 SafeTouch 81.90$                         
April 25, 2023 Comcast 386.99$                        
April 28, 2023 CCUA 1,572.27$                     

TOTAL UTILITIES PAID ONLINE OR AUTOPAY 7,835.14$                  

  597,797.43$              

*Fedex invoices available upon request.

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
Community Development District

Check Run Summary - General Fund

3/1/2023 - 4/30/2023



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/08/23          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 03/01/2023 - 04/30/2023 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 3/07/23 00045 3/06/23 03062023 202303 300-15100-10000                                     *          450,000.00
EXCESS FUND TXF #322380

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION                                 450,000.00 003160
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/07/23 00045 3/06/23 03062023 202303 300-58100-10000                                     *           60,805.00

FY23 CAP RSRV TXF #322381
STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION                                  60,805.00 003161

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/07/23 00193 2/19/23 20220098 202302 330-57200-34500                                     *            2,970.00

ANNUAL CLOUD RECORDING
KEATINGS COMMUNICATIONS                                         2,970.00 003162

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/07/23 00185 2/25/23 3182984  202301 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,686.04

JAN GENERAL COUNSEL
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  1,686.04 003163

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/07/23 00054 3/01/23 13129561 202303 330-57200-46500                                     *            1,505.74

POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        1,505.74 003164

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/07/23 00073 2/20/23 453      202301 320-53800-46000                                     *            5,172.19

GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINT
2/20/23 453      202301 330-57200-46201                                     *              290.76

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
2/20/23 453      202301 330-57200-46100                                     *              608.60

AMENITY REPIARS & REPLACE
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               6,071.55 003165

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/21/23 00183 3/01/23 8303626  202303 320-53800-46200                                     *           11,662.29

MAR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES,INC                              11,662.29 003166

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/21/23 00035 3/10/23 18042    202302 320-53800-45000                                     *            2,810.00

ADD PROPERTY
EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS, LLC                                    2,810.00 003167

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/21/23 00003 3/01/23 239      202303 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,069.17

MAR MANAGEMENT FEES
3/01/23 239      202303 310-51300-49100                                     *              100.00

MAR WEBSITE ADMIN
3/01/23 239      202303 310-51300-35100                                     *              116.67

MAR INFO TECH
3/01/23 239      202303 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67

MAR DISSEM AGENT SERVICE
3/01/23 239      202303 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .33

OFFICE SUPPLIES

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/08/23          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 03/01/2023 - 04/30/2023 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

3/01/23 239      202303 310-51300-42000                                     *                6.60
POSTAGE

3/01/23 239      202303 310-51300-42500                                     *               41.55
COPIES

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,750.99 003168
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/21/23 00093 2/24/23 20232698 202303 330-57200-60100                                     *            2,350.00

3/25 SPECIAL EVENTS
2/24/23 20232699 202303 330-57200-60100                                     *              700.00

12/9 CHRISTMAS EVENT DEP
JACKSONVILLE CARRIAGE CO LLC                                    3,050.00 003169

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/21/23 00176 2/28/23 02282023 202302 330-57200-34500                                     *              320.00

SECURITY 2/4/23 & 2/19/23
MICHAEL C LAYNE                                                   320.00 003170

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/21/23 00131 12/27/22 PSI93809 202212 330-57200-34500                                     *              900.00

ANNUAL MONITORING
PYE-BARKER FIRE & SAFETY, INC.                                    900.00 003171

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/21/23 00073 3/01/23 452      202303 330-57200-46200                                     *              731.42

MAR JANITORIAL SERVICES
3/01/23 452      202303 330-57200-46400                                     *            1,125.00

MAR POOL MAINTENANCE SRVC
3/01/23 452      202303 330-57200-34000                                     *            2,014.92

MAR CONTRACT ADMIN
3/01/23 452      202303 330-57200-34100                                     *            5,154.92

MAR FACILITY MANAGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               9,026.26 003172

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/21/23 00076 3/01/23 77032B   202303 320-53800-46400                                     *              850.00

MAR LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                              850.00 003173

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/03/23 00073 3/15/23 454      202302 320-53800-46000                                     *            1,266.65

FEB GROUNDS RPR & MAINT
3/15/23 454      202302 330-57200-46201                                     *              391.66

FEB JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
3/15/23 454      202302 330-57200-51000                                     *              143.41

FEB OFFICE SUPPLIES
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               1,801.72 003174

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/10/23 00183 4/01/23 8343283  202304 320-53800-46200                                     *           11,662.29

APR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES,INC                              11,662.29 003175

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/08/23          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 03/01/2023 - 04/30/2023 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 4/10/23 00003 4/01/23 240      202304 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,069.17
APR MANAGEMENT FEES

4/01/23 240      202304 310-51300-49100                                     *              100.00
APR WEBSITE ADMIN

4/01/23 240      202304 310-51300-35100                                     *              116.67
APR INFO TECH

4/01/23 240      202304 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67
APR DISSEM AGENT SRVCS

4/01/23 240      202304 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .60
OFFICE SUPPLIES

4/01/23 240      202304 310-51300-42000                                     *               93.87
POSTAGE

4/01/23 240      202304 310-51300-42500                                     *               55.80
COPIES

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,852.78 003176
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/10/23 00185 3/31/23 3197805  202302 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,119.19

FEB GENERAL COUNSEL
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  1,119.19 003177

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/10/23 00106 3/29/23 03292023 202302 330-57200-34500                                     *              336.00

SECURITY 2/24 & 3/10-11
3/29/23 03292023 202302 330-57200-34500                                     *              304.00

SECURITY 2/10-11 & 2/24
MATTHEW EDMONSON                                                  640.00 003178

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/10/23 00176 3/30/23 03302023 202303 330-57200-34500                                     *              336.00

SECURITY 3/4/23 & 3/18/23
MICHAEL C LAYNE                                                   336.00 003179

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/10/23 00054 4/04/23 13129561 202304 330-57200-46500                                     *            1,505.74

APR POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        1,505.74 003180

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/10/23 00073 3/27/23 456      202303 330-57200-60100                                     *            2,312.94

EASTER EVENT 3/25/23
3/31/23 457      202303 330-57200-34110                                     *              297.50

MAR FACILITY ASSISTANT
4/01/23 455      202304 330-57200-46200                                     *              731.42

APR JANITORIAL SERVICES
4/01/23 455      202304 330-57200-46400                                     *            1,125.00

APR POOL MAINT SRVCS
4/01/23 455      202304 330-57200-34000                                     *            2,014.92

APR CONTRACT ADMIN
4/01/23 455      202304 330-57200-34100                                     *            5,154.92

APR FACILITY MANAGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                              11,636.70 003181

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                589,962.29

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/08/23          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 03/01/2023 - 04/30/2023 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              589,962.29

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO





















































































AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/08/23          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 03/01/2023 - 04/30/2023 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - CAP RS

BANK B PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 4/03/23 00008 3/25/23 REQ56    202303 300-58100-10000                                     *           95,027.00
REQUISITION 56 RETAINAGE

HOFFMAN COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION                                95,027.00 000048
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/03/23 00026 3/15/23 ESTIMATE 202303 320-53800-61000                                     *           18,400.00

SLIDE TOWER REPAIRS
CARLOS L BRITO MARTINEZ DBA JCB                                18,400.00 000049

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK B                113,427.00

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              113,427.00

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO
















	Agenda
	III.     B.   Ratification of Pay Requisitions (55-58)
	V. Consideration of Proposal from Brightview for Sod and Seeding 
	VI. Consideration of Proposal from Riverside Management Services for Fiscal Year 2024 Services
	VII. Consideration of Resolution 2023-03, Approving the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 and Setting a Public Hearing Date for Adoption
	VIII. Consideration of Resolution 2023-04, Setting a Hearing on Revised Amenity Suspension and Termination Rules
	IX. Consideration of Resolution 2023-05, Resolution Regarding Records Retention Policies
	X. B.  District Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters (1,511)
	D. 1.         Report 
	    XII.    A.   Approval of the Minutes of the February 15, 2023 Continued Meeting and the March 21, 2023 Meeting 
	B.        Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures for the Period Ending April 30, 2023 
	C.     Assessment Receipts Schedule
	D. Approval of Check Register 



